
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

      
   21 January 2015 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Wednesday, 28 January 2015 

beginning at 
10:00 am 

in the 
Room 41, Level 4, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillors Bicknell, Irish and Mrs Sollitt 

 County Councillors Kyrle and Lyon 
Annabel Cook Hampshire Arts and Museums Service 
Tim Kelly Hampshire Arts and Museums Service 
Jean Roberts-Jones One Community 
Guy Riddoch Area Co-ordinator 

  
  

 
 
Staff Contact: Democratic Services Officer: Jack Grounds Tel: 023 8068 

8026; Email: jack.grounds@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   

 
RICHARD WARD 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. Minutes of the Previous Meeting    (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
2. Apologies     
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 5 - 16) 
 
4. Finance Report    (Pages 17 - 20) 
 

 
Eastleigh House 

 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

5. Draft 2015/16 Venue Plan    (Pages 21 - 36) 
 
6. Partnership Committee Agreement - Heads of Terms    (Pages 37 - 38) 
 
7. Cultural Conversations - Hampshire Cultural Trust Update     
 
8. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 



 

 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 24 September 2014  (11:30 am – 12:11 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillors Irish (Chair), Bicknell and Davidovitz. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Kyrle, Lyon and Jean 
Roberts-Jones. 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 RESOLVED  

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2014 be approved as 
a correct record of the meeting.  

 
2. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 The Committee considered the Curator’s Report. Annabel Cook reported 

that throughout June and July 2014, bunting had been created as part of 
textile project; commemorating the centenary of the outbreak of the First 
World War, by the older people at the Velmore Centre in Eastleigh and First 
Wessex Housing Association had been involved in bringing people together 
to the Velmore Centre to take part in this initiative. The project looked at 
source material from the Hampshire Records Office and as well as the 
historical context, residents learnt new skills around needlework and textiles. 
A ceremony unveiling the completed bunting was due to take place on the 
22 September 2014. It was also reported that on the 11 October, a 
professional actor was coming to the Museum to take part in the “Soldier’s 
Journey” exhibition. It was noted that the Area Team had taken on board the 
comments of Jean Robert-Jones and One Community about putting 
together the exhibition.  
 
It was reported that the “Soldier’s Journey” exhibition was dovetailed with 
the “ENtrenchED” project with the involvement of students from Wildern 
School. These projects coincided with the students’ work on the impact of 
the First World War on Eastleigh and the rest of the Borough and gave the 
students the opportunity to engage and further research the First World 
War. It was highlighted that the students work would be incorporated into 
the “Soldier’s Journey” exhibition.  
 
Annabel was delighted to announce that visits to the Museum have 
increased by 50% on the same period in the previous year and that this 
increase demonstrated the success of the partnership together with the 
popularity of the “Lost World Zoo” exhibition. The Committee was also 
informed that there had been a 31% increase in formal educational visits to 
the Museum and that Learning and Engagement Officers had been ensuring 
that the visits had strong links to the National Curriculum; specifically 

Agenda Item 1

1



 

 

emphasising the new curriculum’s focus on local history to which Eastleigh 
fits very well.  
 
Annabel reported that a new brochure had been sent to schools across 
other local authorities in Hampshire, informing them of opportunities for 
further educational visits including Eastleigh Museum. She highlighted that 
the challenge for the Museum is that it needs to fit with the new school’s 
history curriculum.  
It was also reported that the Gordon Keeble Day in Eastleigh had been a 
great success.  
Councillor Irish commented that the Committee was very impressed with the 
increase in visitor figures and the work that had been done with regard to 
the First World War exhibitions.  
 
A written update was given on behalf of Jean Robert-Jones and One 
Community. It highlighted that One Community had recruited, inducted and 
trained fifty museum volunteers since it took-over the day-to-day running of 
the Museum in May 2012. During this time, these volunteers have 
welcomed a total of 42,671 visitors to the Museum as of the end of August 
2014. Thirteen of these volunteers have taken up full-time employment 
elsewhere having gained retail, catering and customer service experience 
and that One Community had noted that this voluntary work had helped 
volunteers gain confidence and new skills to lay a foundation for a future 
career or further study. It was reported that One Community’s main focus 
had been to preserve the heritage of Eastleigh, as part of its commitment to 
improve the quality of life for local people, but to also provide a central High 
Street location for a community hub.  
 
Councillor Bicknell commented that One Community’s work had been very 
rewarding for the Museum and the wider local community.  
 
It was AGREED:  

(1) That the Curator’s Report be noted,  

(2) That congratulations be given to Jean Robert-Jones and One 

Community and Hampshire County Council for their excellent 

work with Eastleigh Museum and especially the increase in 

visitor figures on the same quarter in the previous year.  

 
 
3. BUDGET 
 
 Tim Kelly reported that the Budget was on target and that it represents a 

transitional period from the management of Hampshire County Council to 
that of the Hampshire Cultural Trust. He also reported that the One 
Community’s contribution to the budget is to go ahead as planned.  
 
Councillor Davidovitz asked for a revised presentation of the figures in the 
budget. Tim Kelly informed the Committee that he would provide an update 

2



 

 

to Members on the budget.  
 
It was AGREED:  

(1) That the budget be noted,  

(2) That Tim Kelly will prepare a revised report for the next meeting 

outlining the figures in the budget.  

 
 
4. HAMPSHIRE CULTURAL TRUST UPDATE 
 
 Tim Kelly reported that work on each of the strands of activity has 

progressed to plan since the verbal update at the meeting of the Committee 
of the 11 June 2014. The transfer to the Hampshire Cultural Trust (HCT) 
was expected to be the 1 November 2014 to coincide with dates for payroll.  
 

 
5. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 RESOLVED 

 
That the next meeting of the Committee take place on 28 January 2015 
at 10:00 am in Eastleigh House. 

 
M5399 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

  
  

  

Committee: EASTLEIGH MUSEUM 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 28th January 2015 
Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Erica Munro 

  
Purpose: 

  
 
  
 
 
1.  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Museum 
 

1.1 Museum Service Delivery 
 
In October to December 2014, the emphasis was on delivering the 1914 Big Theme, 
planning and programming, and consolidating the relationship between Hampshire 
Cultural Trust and One Community. Erica Munro became the new South East Area 
Curator at the end of October. With 2 years as Museum Officer at Gosport Discovery 
Centre and 4 years in Hampshire’s Exhibitions team, Erica has wide experience of working 
with partners to deliver high quality museum experiences and her background is in 
museum and heritage interpretation. Erica curated last year’s popular Meet the Victorians 
exhibition, managed the Lego Lost World Zoo exhibition tour and was the Project Manager 
and curator of the Soldiers’ Journey exhibition which opened simultaneously in 10 venues 
around Hampshire as part of the Big Theme programme. 
 
In December, the Curator arranged a visit by the Collections team to undertake cleaning of 
the displays. At the same time, she redisplayed the items in the Railway Apprentice 
showcase, adding several items newly donated to the service by a donor who had 
requested their display at Eastleigh. An object which had been on loan in the permanent 
galleries was returned to its owner. 
 

      
The Railway showcase at Eastleigh Museum with its newly displayed objects 

Report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum 

Covering period October to December 2014 

Agenda Item 3

5



 

2 
 

 
Communications with One Community are showing improvement, with regular contact 
between the Curator and the One Community staff and museum volunteers. New systems 
are being developed to improve marketing and promotion of events and exhibitions, to 
answer enquiries and to deal with administrative issues. A successful programming 
meeting in November has led to plans for a joint summer project. The Celebrate 
Volunteers exhibition will be developed and installed as a joint effort between the Trust 
and One Community. Future joint exhibitions are also in the planning stage, including one 
featuring carnivals and the Eastleigh Mela. One Community volunteers have contributed to 
the quality of the building by installing additional shelves in the reception area and refitting 
the kitchen space. 
 

 
The sink unit, resprayed and refitted by a One Community volunteer 

 
 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 

The visitor figures show a decrease on the same months last year. This reflects a 
widespread trend although Eastleigh is still performing well when compared to other Trust 
community museums in Hampshire. 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2009 – 
2010  

2179 1864 1521 2574 2693 2046 2401 1714 1300 3087 3598 3236 28,213 

 
2010 – 
2011 

2372 1567 1780 2493 3205 2091 2349 1881 1151 1236 2109 1759 24,041 

 
2011 – 
2012 

1713 1408 1516 2022 2322 1805 1542 1351 1297 1140 1550 1321 18,987 

 
2012 – 
2013 

923 163 1153 1131 1640 1213 1153 2018 962 1094 1576 

 

1236 
 

14,252 

 

2013 – 
2014 

1470 1523 1279 1405 2461 1571 1910 1788 1139 1538 1692 1738 19,514 

2014 – 

2015  
1926 3052 1561 1961 1465 1501 1470 1382 850     

 

6



 

3 
 

2.  Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and Related Events 

 
The Soldier’s Journey exhibition was part of Hampshire’s county-wide commemorations of 
the First World War. We opened exhibitions on the 11th October in 9 venues across the 
county. Each exhibition explored Hampshire’s role in the First World War – most of the 
troops from Britain and her allies came through Hampshire on their way to the front as well 
as training here. Hampshire was a huge supplier of both horses and equipment and of 
course was home to many of the hospitals that helped to deal with huge quantities of 
wounded. Eastleigh’s exhibition examined Eastleigh’s unique contribution through the 
railways and through the huge clearing hospital that was set up in town. As well as 
researching information, writing text panels, arranging loans, designing, transporting and 
installing the exhibition, the team also commissioned a special film to be shown in the 
gallery exploring the themes with archive footage and oral history interviews. 
 

 
Soldiers’ Journey at Eastleigh Museum, Oct 2014 – Jan 2015 

 

      
Text panels from the Soldiers’ Journey exhibition, Oct 2014 – Jan 2015 

 

7



 

4 
 

  
Throughout October and November the Wildern School ‘Eastleigh ENtrenchED group’ 
continued to meet weekly to complete their Silver Arts Award portfolio. The portfolios were 
based on the huge amount of work they’d put in to the project throughout 2014 and gave 
them the opportunity to gain an accredited award off the back of the work they’d done on 
the Soldiers’ Journey exhibition input and films and the ENtrenchED exhibition.  
There were 6 young people in the group who took part in delivering a workshop at 
Eastleigh museum during October half term. The students were responsible for welcoming 
families, leading them in activities recreating 1914 style toys out of paper and talking them 
through a selection of 1940 era toys. The students were particularly good at working with 
young children and enjoyed the opportunity to share their knowledge with them and 
encouraging them to try out the different toys. Several parents commented how good it 
was to see younger people involved in leading the workshops.  
 

 
Stills from the ‘WW1 Show’ film by Wildern School’s ENtrenchED students 

 
 
 
The group also attended a visit to the Imperial War Museum London and an awards 
evening in December at the Ashcroft Arts Centre to celebrate their achievements. All 
students achieved their Silver Arts Award. Wildern School’s short film was chosen at the 
Awards Ceremony as the ‘Peoples’ Choice’ highlighting how well people responded to 
their film which was set in Eastleigh.  
 
 
 

8



 

5 
 

 
3.  Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 

and Advice   
 

3.1 Caring for collections 

In December, two of the Trust’s conservators spent a day deep cleaning the 1930s room 
set at the front of the museum watched by Mr and Mrs Smith and surface cleaned other 
parts of the more permanent displays.  
 

     
 

HCT Collections Officers cleaning the 1930s room set 
 

 
 

9



 

6 
 

The opportunity was also taken to download data from the ‘tinytags’ which record the 
temperature and humidity in the galleries. Any significant fluctuations that might eventually 
cause damage to the objects in the museum can then be identified and the causes 
addressed. This check is done in all the museums and stores managed by the Trust every 
six months, including the stores at Chilcomb House in Winchester where objects relating to 
the Borough of Eastleigh are kept when they are not on display or attending events, such 
as the Gordon Keeble car and the Pirelli Landover.  
 

3.2 Promoting access to collections 

The preparation of objects for Soldiers’ Journey was completed and the exhibition installed 
in October with the help of the Collections Team.  The canvas bucket that was included in 
the Eastleigh show had to be re-humidified to allow it to be reshaped. It was then surface 
cleaned and a mount made for it. All the work was carried out by the conservators at 
Chilcomb House.  
 
The exhibition also featured a mess jacket from the collections dating from 1917 when the 
Hampshire Carabineers Regiment was amalgamated with the 15th Hampshire Yeomanry 
Infantry owing to a lack of horses following the massive slaughter in the theatre of war. 
 

 
The mess jacket and saddle in the Soldiers’ Journey exhibition 

 
The objects installed in the Hampshire’s Hidden Treasure case for this period also marked 
the centenary of the outbreak of the First World War. They were Toby jugs featuring 
leaders from the First World War that were drawn from the County Council’s Decorative 
Arts Collection. They replaced a selection of hawk moths from the Natural Sciences 
Collection. This type of display serves to illustrate the diversity of the collections cared for 
by Hampshire County Council and that are available for exhibition at Eastleigh Museum. 
  
3.3 Providing specialist knowledge and advice  
Other work undertaken by the Collections Team has been driven by the Dinosaurs! Big 
Theme project which will be launched in all sites this summer. The exhibition that is being 
developed for Eastleigh Museum is called Drawn to Dinosaurs because it features the 
work of artist John Sibbick. Our Keeper of Natural Sciences has been working with the 

10



 

7 
 

Head of Public Programmes visiting the artist and making selections of his artwork, which 
will also include preparatory sketches and possibly models of dinosaurs.    
 
Extensive research into dinosaurs is being undertaken so that informative captions can be 
written and connections made to our collections and those that will be loaned to the Trust 
by other museums across the UK. 
 
 
            

 
4.  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

 
4.1  Formal Education Provision 
 
From September 2014 to January 2015 the CELO ran 5 workshops for school groups at 
the museum or as outreach from the museum for 145 pupils. The changes to the National 
Curriculum history programmes mean that we no longer get bookings for Home Front 
Eastleigh which used to be the most popular session. 

 

Date School 

Key Stage 

& Year 

Group 

No. of 

children 
Type of workshop 

24 Nov Shakespeare Infant KS1, Yr1 29 Home Explorers 

25 Nov Shakespeare Infant KS1, Yr1 28 Home Explorers 

25 Nov Shakespeare Infant KS1, Yr1 31 
Home Explorers (Outreach at 

the school) 

12 Jan Fryern Junior KS2, Yr3 29 
Our Town in the Past 

(Outreach at the school) 

12 Jan Fryern Junior KS2, Yr3 28 
Our Town in the Past 

(Outreach at the school) 

 
None of the schools above returned their teacher evaluation forms. However, verbal 
feedback on the day suggests they were very happy with their workshops. Shakespeare 
Infant staff were very grateful that the CELO took the museum activities into the school 
when a power cut in the town centre meant that the museum was too dark for the site visit! 
Fryern Junior staff were equally happy that the CELO took the activities to the school when 
high winds and rain prevented their classes walking the 2 miles to the museum. To make 
up for the loss of visitor numbers at the site, the CELO has set a homework task for these 
children which involves coming to the museum to answer set questions and to photograph 
the “Eastleigh’s Victorian Journey” interactive panel when they have done the activity. 
 
The Community Engagement and Learning Officer finished her ENtrenchED project work 
by training the Wildern students over two sessions to be facilitators for WW1 family 
activities in the Soldier’s Journey exhibition during October half term. 
 
The CELO is now working with Wet Picnic theatre arts company on a funding bid to work 
with 4 local schools on a railway related project looking at the effect of the coming of the 
railway on Eastleigh. As well as history enquiries in the museum the classes involved will 
produce a display for the museum and a piece of theatre. 

11



 

8 
 

 
4.2  Community Engagement and Learning 
 

A programme of activities for a range of audiences was offered by the Community 
Engagement and Learning Team over the period from September to January. 390 people 
participated in the expert-led sessions, a further 383 engaged with the activities at the 
outreach events and many more enjoyed the self-led activities in the museum which are 
always available.  
 

Activity/Event Target Audience Date 
No. of 

participants 

Provided display and 

activities for British Legion 

WW1 event in the park 

Community 7 Sept 
163 

(outreach) 

Gordon Keeble evening 

talk (at One Community 

due to lack of space in 

museum exhibition area) 

Adults 23 Sept 32 

Your Country Needs You – 

Recruitment Office 

activities to launch 

Soldier’s Journey exhibition 

Families 11 Oct 27 

Provided activities for 

Pumpkin Festival at RVCP 
Families 11 Oct 

220 

(outreach) 

Half Term Havoc (WW1 

hands-on activities run by 

ENtrenchED students) 

Families 30 Oct 52 

The Great War in 

Postcards daytime talk 
Adults 12 Nov 6 

Christmas Lights switch-on 

event - activities in the 

museum, making WW1 

Christmas presents and 

handling WW1 objects. 

Families 22 Nov 

214 (+ many 

more at stall 

outside) 

Eastleigh During the Great 

War, evening talk 
Adults 2 Dec 33 

Reminiscence Workshop – 

Christmas Past 

Older people in care 

(Fernhill Court) 
16 Dec 9 (outreach) 

Market day Drop-in – Old & 

New 
Adults 8 Jan 17 

 
The highlight was the range of activities offered for the Christmas Lights Switch-on event. 
The CELO provided a set of WW1 era replica toys for the stall on the High Street. Inside 
the museum she provided and led, with the help of 3 excellent One Community volunteers, 
two ‘making’ activities (WW1 inspired Christmas presents – art nouveau badges and 
replica Princess Mary tins of sweets) and a handling table of real WW1 collections. The 
volunteers leading the handling activity had benefitted from a training day provided by HCT 
for One Community volunteers who work in the museum. 
 

12



 

9 
 

 

Old and New, 8 Jan 2015 

 

 

Your Country Needs You activities, 11 October 2014 

 

     

Christmas Lights Switch-on Day activities, 22 November 2014 

 
 
5.  Marketing and Management 
 
5.1 Marketing communications 
In December 2014 a Hampshire Cultural Trust branded south east area What's On leaflet, 
with a print run of 12,500 was produced. This covered the period from October to January 
and featured Eastleigh, Bursledon Windmill, Gosport Discovery Centre and Westbury 
Manor. It was professionally distributed throughout the region to TICs, libraries, museums, 
accommodation providers, educational establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres 
etc. A new edition covering the period February to May has just been delivered and 

13



 

10 
 

distribution has begun. Posters for the Soldiers’ Journey exhibition were produced for each 
venue and distributed by them. A competition, promoted through social media and actively 
promoted within the museum by One Community volunteers, was run in the museum to 
encourage visitors into the venue in order to take part.  
 

 
The Soldiers’ Journey exhibition poster, designed by marketing agency RLA 

 
5.2 HCT branding and Signage  

HCT branding guidelines were developed in the run up to the launch of the Trust. 
Eastleigh Museum took delivery of new HCT branded signage in readiness for Trust 
launch on 1 November. New templates in MS Word and InDesign format have been 
produced to allow the team to produce a range of simple posters and flyers on site.  
 

 
Poster for a forthcoming exhibition using the new marketing templates 

14



 

11 
 

 
 
5.3 Online marketing 

Events at Eastleigh Museum feature on a monthly basis via the Hampshire County Council 
cultural e-newsletter, Showcase. Showcase is now reaching over 30,000 subscribers and 
regularly features both an exhibition and an object of the month as well as signposting 
recipients to events in the their local area. In addition, the monthly e-newsletter Museums 
Monthly, recently rebranded as HCT is sent to over 12,000 subscribers who have asked to 
receive museums specific information. A new database is also being created for use by 
Hampshire Cultural Trust. 

 
5.4 Research 

Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at key sites over two three-monthly 
periods - January to March and June to August. These are profiled using Mosaic software 
and provide ongoing information on which groups of people are using and not using our 
services and how individual visitor profiles compare to the local area.  This feeds into the 
service and marketing planning processes. Postcodes are now being collected for the 
January to March period. 

5.5. Social Media 

The Facebook page and Twitter feed set up to promote exhibitions and events at HCC 
Museums Service have now been rebranded as Hampshire Cultural Trust. Facebook now 
has nearly 1500 “likes” and Twitter over 2,700 followers. Eastleigh Museum’s own 
Facebook and Twitter accounts, run by both HCT and One Community staff are active, 
with 123 Facebook “likes” and 941 Twitter followers.  

 

 
 

Erica Munro 
January 2015 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH MUSEUM / BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES  
 

28 JANUARY 2015 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND PROPOSED REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 

 
Introduction 
In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough 
Council, the net cost of running Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill is shared between the 
partner authorities.  
 
This report provides an update on the 2014/15 budget and also presents the proposed forward budget 
for 2015/16 (Appendix 1) and recommends approval of this budget by the committee.  Please note 
that the 2014/15 actuals span the periods when venues were run by HCC (April – Oct) and Hampshire 
Cultural Trust (Nov to date). 
 
Description of Proposed 2015/16 Budget 
The draft 2015/16 budget for Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill provided in Appendix 1 
reflects proposed partner contributions as follows:  
 
1. Venue Management - salaries 

Includes venue management and curatorship salaries and on costs. 
 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and 
maintenance cost based on the average costs during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to annual 
fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be 
higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  Hampshire 
County Council will continue to pick up any such overspend in years where more work needs to be 
done. 

 
3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 

This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display 
development, transport, setting up and taking down, cases for local exhibitions, insurance, 
marketing and research relating to new exhibitions. 

 
4. Collections  

This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to 
Eastleigh and Bursledon, organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, The Arts, Natural 
Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to store, manage and provide 
public access to these important collections and make them available to the local community in 
support of exhibitions, displays and activities. 
 

5. Area Learning and Engagement  
The Community Engagement and Learning team are responsible for the design, creation, 
marketing and delivery of participatory learning sessions for young people in school and family 
groups, as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both 
within the museum and beyond in to the community. 
 

6. Business Development 
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing functions 
include visitor research, targeted marketing campaigns, museum and What’s On leaflets, posters, 
website development, email marketing, advertising and media relations leading to free editorial 
and promotions. Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors 
performance, levers funding from external sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and 
liaises closely with senior councillors and officers where appropriate. 
 

Agenda Item 4

17



These budget headings reflect the headings in the draft Venue Plans, making it easier to understand 
where money is being spent and how Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill directly benefit. The 
budget has been modelled to include staff increments and a 1% pay award. They also include more 
accurate projections in relation to VAT costs, the financial activity which will be included in the trading 
arm and projected income from gift aid (where applicable).  
 
The Trust strategy takes a more business-focused approach.  Key aims include: 
 

a) The centrally provided exhibition programmes will be increasingly cost-effective and 
commercial with the objective of increasing visitors and income. Stronger connections will be 
made between the community museum and flagship venue programmes: for example, 
Hampshire’s Big Theme 2014 (1914 – Commemorating World War 1); Lego Lost Worlds Zoo 

b) Expenditure in marketing (both print-based and digital) will increase in support of these 
programmes and their income/ visitor targets 

c) Expenditure in fundraising will increase in support of meeting revenue external investment 
targets 

d) Expenditure in business development expertise will be maintained and strengthened to support 
long-term development plans, revenue and capital investment for culture across Hampshire, 
including Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill 

e) Levering additional investment for public programming across all venues, including Eastleigh 
Museum and Bursledon Windmill. It will be allocated across arts and museums public 
programmes on an annual basis or in relation to specific projects which have secured external 
investment, with priority given to partners demonstrating most strategic commitment. 

 
In addition, we intend to report from time to time on external investment secured and/applied for, and 
in kind support generously received from volunteers, trustees, businesses and other individuals and/or 
organisations.   
 
An example of this external benefit is the recently secured Heritage Lottery Funded programme - 
Inspiring a Culture of Philanthropy in the Hampshire Solent Area. This project will create opportunities 
for the Hampshire Cultural Trust and other Museums in the area to develop their fundraising networks 
and skills. This three-year programme aims to create a culture of philanthropy, and inspire a real step 
change for both the sector and the philanthropic community in the Hampshire Solent area.  
 
Recommendation 
This report recommends that the 2015/16 budget is approved by the committee and that the 
constituent authorities are notified of their requested contribution. 

 

18



Appendix 1 

 
 

 
Eastleigh Museum JMC and Bursledon Windmill JMC Budget 2014/15 and proposed 
2015/16      

           

          

 EASTLEIGH MUSEUM Budget Actuals  Budget  
BURSLEDON 
WINDMILL Budget Actuals  Budget 

     
to 31 
Dec  Proposed      

to 31 
Dec 

Propose
d 

 EXPENDITURE 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16  EXPENDITURE 2014/15 2014/15 2015/16 

   £   £      £ £ 

 
Venue Management - 
salaries 10,118 6,859 9,663  

Venue Management - 
salaries 21,241 15,639 31,301  

 
Venue Management - 
costs* 19,932 9,305 19,264  

Venue Management - 
costs* 7,562 4,260    

 
Public Programmes 
(exhibitions) 21,004 15,753 18,433  

Public Programmes 
(exhibitions) 4,789 3,592 4,608  

 Collections 42,941 32,205 45,421  Collections 6,611 4,958 11,355  

 
Area Learning and 
Engagement 17,728 13,296 24,431  

Area Learning and 
Engagement 23,474 17,605 24,431  

 Business Development 13,843 10,382 22,577  Business Development 13,843 10,382 22,577  

 Total Expenditure 125,564 87,800 139,789  Total Expenditure 77,519 56,436 94,272  

 Income 5,848 0 6,695  Income 4,098 1,494 6,695  

 Net Expenditure 119,716 87,800 133,094  Net Expenditure 73,421 54,942 87,577  

           

 
TOTAL NET 
EXPENDITURE Budget Actuals  Budget       

     
to 31 
Dec Proposed       

   2014/15 2014/15 2015/16       

 Total Eastleigh Museum  119,716 87,800 133,094       

 
Total Bursledon 
Windmill 73,421 54,942 87,577       

 
TOTAL NET 
EXPENDITURE 193,137 142,742 220,671       

           

           

  INCOME Budget Actuals  Budget        

     
To 31 
Dec 

Proposed 
       

   2014/15 2014/15 2015/16       

 

Hampshire County 
Council / Hampshire 
Cultural Trust 132,737 82,342 160,271       

 
EBC Contribution - 
Eastleigh Museum 30,000 30,000 30,000       

 
EBC Contribution - 
Bursledon Windmill 27,728 27,728 27,728       

 
BPC Contribution - 
Bursledon Windmill 2,672 2,672 2,672       

 TOTAL INCOME 193,137 142,742 220,671       

           

 

* This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based 
on the average actual costs during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 (due to annual fluctuations in property and maintenance 
costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years 
the burden will be lighter.  HCC will continue to pick up any such overspend in years when more work needs to be 
done). 
   

 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Eastleigh Museum  DRAFT Venue Plan, 2015-16                                                           

 

ABOUT HAMPSHIRE CULTURAL TRUST 

Hampshire arts and museums are now operated and funded by Hampshire Cultural Trust. The Trust champions world-

class culture and exists to showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s creative economy. This independent charity 

works collaboratively to bring organisations, people and ideas together for greater impact. It’s an exciting time for 

culture in our county. To find out more and get involved visit: www.hampshireculturaltrust.org.uk  

OUR VISION 

We will all strive to be the champion of world-class culture in Hampshire 

OUR MISSION 

We will showcase, connect and empower Hampshire’s culture and creative economy 

 

Eastleigh Museum Venue Plan in context: 

Delivering against the key objectives above will ensure that Hampshire Cultural Trust and individual venues like 

Eastleigh Museum continue to contribute to the overarching strategic frameworks of their primary funders.  

 

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 52

1



2 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT Venue Plan, 2015-2016 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

1. Public programmes (exhibitions) 

1.1 Contribute to centrally 

generated exhibitions 

ACC 1200 visits per 

month  

Visitors are 

actively 

engaged with 

the subject 

matter 

HCT1 

HCT2 

EBC2 

EBC3 

1.2 Provide 3 locally delivered 

exhibitions including 1 working 

with the local community 

ACC 1200 visits per 

month 

Increase in 

repeat visits, 

especially local 

people 

HCT1 EBC2 

1.2 Big Theme Dinofest 2015  – 

Drawn to Dinosaurs – Dinosaur 

HPP 3 % rise in 

visitor figures 

New visitors 

brought to 

 

HCT1 EBC2 

EBC3 

2
2



3 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

Art exhibition including 

specially commissioned pieces 

and model dinosaur hunt. 

Associated programme of talks 

and events. 

 

museum 

2. Area Learning and Engagement –  

2.1 Offer a programme of led 

curriculum-based workshops 

for local schools, especially Key 

Stages 1 & 2 

CELO 300 pupil 

interactions 

£600 income 

Pupils display 

an increased 

knowledge of 

the subject 

matter.  Pupils 

are more 

actively 

engaged in the 

subject matter 

at school 

 HCT1 

HCT2 

 

2.2 Offer a group visit and outreach 

service for organised groups 

CELO 80 

participants. 

Profile of the 

museum raised 

 HCT2 EBC2 

EBC3 

2
3



4 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

within the community (e.g. 

Scouts, special interest groups)  

4 per year 

£150 income as an engaging 

and educational  

place for group 

visits 

2.3 Promote and develop a range of 

workshops for adults on the 

site eg: craft workshops 

ACC 20 participants 

£100 

Raise profile of 

the museum as 

a venue for 

adults 

 HCT2 EBC3 

2.4 Develop and promote a varied 

and accessible programme of 

family activities and events 

linked to the exhibitions 

programme, permanent 

displays or events 

 

4 x led holiday workshops per 

year 

2 x self led family activities per 

year 

CELO 750 

participants 

 

£150 income 

generated 

Families report 

high levels of 

satisfaction with 

the offer.  

Families are 

actively 

engaged and 

have fun whilst 

in the 

museums. 

 HCT2 EBC2 

2
4



5 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

3. Big Theme and Events      

3.1 Develop and promote a varied 

and accessible family learning 

and children’s activity 

programmed linked to Dino 

Fest 2015 

2 x led holiday workshops 

1 x self led activities 

1 x special event 

ACC 

& 

CELO 

750 visitors 

 

£150 income 

generated 

Families report 

high levels of 

satisfactions 

with the offer.   

Families are 

actively 

engaged and 

have fun whilst 

in the museum 

HCT 2 EBC2 

3.2 Big Theme Dinofest 2015 

Venue 

HPP Contribute to 

3% rise in 

visitors 

Venue for talks 

and workshops 

as part of 

Dinofest 2015. 

New audiences 

engaged 

HCT2 EB2 

4. Collections      

4.1 Manage storage, 

documentation, digitisation, 

HoC Ongoing Objects remain 

in good 

 

HCT1 EBC3 

2
5



6 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

conservation of and access to 

collections associated with 

Eastleigh Borough and all 

related information at Chilcomb 

House 

condition and 

easy access 

provided 

4.2 Continue programme of 

‘house-keeping’ and collections 

care of open areas, objects and 

cases  

PC 4 x CO days 

with support 

from 

volunteers 

Improvement in 

visitor 

experience and 

collections care 

HCT1 EBC3 

4.3 Provide an emergency 

conservation service for 

collections on display in event 

of flood, fire or other disaster 

PC As required Appropriate 

level of 

response 

provided 

HCT1 EBC3 

4.4 Continue six monthly 

monitoring of environmental 

information (light, temperature, 

humidity) and pest 

management 

PC 2 x data 

download and 

analysis 

Stable 

environment 

maintained 

HCT1 EBC3 

4.5 Continue to monitor security of PC Ongoing No losses HCT1 EBC3 

2
6



7 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

the objects on display  

4.6 Dino Fest 2015 – undertake 

research, select artwork, write 

captions and make window 

mounts for paintings for Drawn 

to Dinosaurs. 

HoC June 2015 Increase in 

visits to 

museum 

HCT1 EBC3 

4.7 Continue to provide 

Hampshire’s Hidden Treasures 

mini displays   

CTK 3 x mini 

displays 

Increase in 

number of 

objects from 

stores on 

display 

HCT1 EBC3 

4.8 Support other exhibitions and 

events through the supply of 

specialist knowledge and 

objects/specimens from the 

collections, including the 

Gordon Keeble car 

CTK As required 

 

 

 

Increase in 

visits to 

museum 

HCT1 EBC3 

4.9 Ensure Eastleigh Museum 

retains Accreditation as part of 

HoC September 

2015 

Museum 

continues to 

HCT1, 

HCT2 

EBC3 

2
7



8 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

the Hampshire Cultural Trust 

resubmission. 

meet national 

standard 

4.1

0 

Develop concept and apply for 

funding for The Engine Room 

project – Collections Centre for 

Hampshire Cultural Trust 

HoC March 2016 Funding 

secured for 

next stage of 

development 

HCT1, 

HCT2 

EBC3 

5. Local Priorities 

5.1 Develop or contribute to 

partnership events with EBC, 

2 per year 

ACC 200 visitors Maximising 

resources to 

ensure events 

are high profile. 

Increase in 

visitor numbers. 

HCT1 

HCT2 

 

EBC2 

EBC3 

5.2 Provide opportunities for in 

depth engagement funded 

through external sources, 

1 x project planned and 

delivered 

CELO 20 participants 

worked with 

over 10 week 

period 

20 participants 

demonstrate 

positive impact 

of project 

through 

evaluation 

 

HCT1 

HCT2 

 

EBC2 

EBC3 

2
8



9 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

5.3 Develop and promote a group 

visit and outreach service for 

organised groups within the 

community (ie: Brownies, Day 

Centres) linked to community 

priorities 

CELO 5 groups 

worked with 

 

50 new 

participants 

Increase 

awareness of 

museum as an 

engaging and 

educational 

place for group 

visits 

HCT1 EBC2 

5.4 Develop and promote a varied 

programme of adult talks, 

workshops and events linked to 

collections and exhibitions 

1 x Meet the Expert 

2 x workshops 

CELO 30 participants 

£100 income 

generated 

Increased 

engagement 

with adults in 

the local 

community 

HCT1 EBC2 

6. Business Development   

6.1 Strategic management of 

Eastleigh Museum focusing on 

increasing visitors, generating 

investment and increasing 

trading income. 

 Minimum 3% 

increase in 

audiences 

from 13/14 

baseline 

More local 

visitors from 

target groups 

visiting more 

often. 

 HCT2 EBC2 

2
9



10 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

6.2 Develop annual Venue Plans 

and manage relationships and 

processes with JMC. 

   HCT2 EBC2 

6.3 Collect postcode data twice a 

year and use Mosaic profiles 

and maps to target groups and 

local cold spots with specific 

campaigns. 

 Minimum 3% 

increase in 

audiences 

from 13/14 

baseline 

Target Groups 

F, B, G. 

More local 

visitors from 

target groups 

visiting more 

often. 

HCT2 EBC2 

6.4 Market the annual Big Theme 

programme: 2015/16 Big 

Theme (Dinosaurs) 

 Minimum 3% 

increase in 

audiences 

from 13/14 

baseline 

 

Minimum 3% 

increase in 

earned income 

Increased local, 

regional and 

family visits 

 HCT2 EBC2 

3
0



11 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

from 13/14 

baseline 

6.5 Produce and distribute ‘What’s 

On’ guides three times per year 

as means of marketing public 

programme (exhibitions and 

events) 

 Dates 

Print 

quantities 

Distribution 

reach 

 

Strong local 

awareness of 

museum’s 

programme 

leading to 

more local 

visitors visiting 

more often 

 HCT2 EBC2 

7. Venue management  

7.1 Maintain and Develop 

relationship with One 

Community to enable effective 

service delivery 

ACC One 

Community 

direct input 

into 1 

exhibition and 

briefed on 

content and 

themes of all 

On Community 

report an 

increase in 

satisfaction with 

the partnership 

 HCT3 EBC2 

3
1



12 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

exhibitions 

£5000 income 

contributions 

from shop 

7.2 Continue to improve customer 

service through the 

staff/volunteer Front of House 

team to ensure a warm and 

friendly welcome at all times 

 

2 x visitor surveys completed 

per year 

Staff/Volunteer Development 

programme designed and 

implemented 

ACC 15,000 visitors 

 

90% of 

customers 

surveyed said 

the museum 

was good or 

excellent 

 

HCT1 EBC2 

7.3 Building is safe and adequately 

maintained at all times through 

regular H&S reviews, cleaning 

schedules, pest control etc. 

ACC Venue open & 

safe when 

scheduled and 

as advertised 

Visitors report 

satisfaction with 

the standard of 

the building  

 

HCT1 EBC2 

3
2



13 

 

 Key actions Lead Target  Outcome Resource Link to 

HCT goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh  

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

 

All building issues reported to 

relevant contractors within 4 

hours 

 

Date/Meeting where Plan was approved:  

Date of next review:  

 

4. Added value activities i.e. activities falling outside the specific Venue budget but are of operational or strategic value 

to the museum services at Eastleigh Museum  

 Key actions Lead Target Outcome Budget Link to HCT 

goals 

Link to 

Eastleigh 

Borough 

Council 

outcomes 

3
3



14 

 

 Funding sourced from 

Hampshire Futures to support 

learning at Eastleigh Museum 

AM £500 income New audiences 

developed for 

the museum 

 HCT1 

HCT2 

EBC2 

 

Glossary of Positions and post holders: 

Initials Position Lead Officer Name 

ACC Area Community Curator Erica Munro 

CELO Community Engagement and 

Learning Officer 

Janet Wildman 

AM Area Manager Annabel Cook 

HPP Head of Public Programmes Nick Suffolk 

CTK Collections Team Keeper Christine Taylor 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1: Hampshire Cultural Trust Goal and Local Authority Priorities 

Hampshire Cultural Trust Goals Eastleigh Borough Council’s Corporate Strategy identifies 

three priorities 

3
4



15 

 

In order to achieve our vision, in the first five years (2015-

2020) we will, 

1. Re-focus our own business to deliver excellence and 

build a world class arts and museums portfolio 

which has the power to transform people’s lives 

2. Ensure the Trust grows as a successful and resilient 

not for profit business 

3. Inspire a dynamic partnership to achieve the shared 

cultural vision for Hampshire 

 EBC1.  A green borough – Safeguarding our environment 

for future generations 

EBC2.  A prosperous place – where business can flourish 

and everyone can share in prosperity. 

EBC3.  A healthy community – active and lively with a spirit 

of togetherness, health and wellbeing. 

 

3
5



3
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



HEADS OF TERMS FOR PARTNERSHIP FUNDING AGREEMENT 

 

1. Parties: 

Hampshire County Council (HCC) and [Borough or District Council] (B/DC)  together 

the Local Authorities (LAs) 

2. Statutory Powers 

LAs empowered to provide or contribute towards the provision of museums 

(Sections 12 and 14 of the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964 and Sections 206 

and 208 of the Local Government Act 1972) 

HCC and Winchester City Council have established a registered charity, Hampshire 

Cultural Trust (HCT)  to which HCC has transferred its arts, museum and heritage 

services and Winchester City Council has transferred its museum and heritage 

services  

(Sections 12 and 14 of the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964, Sections 206 

and 208 of the Local Government Act 1972 and Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011)   

LAs empowered to discharge any of their functions jointly with one or more other 

local authorities and to arrange for the discharge of those functions by a joint 

committee 

(Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972) 

3. Purpose of Agreement 

LAs agree to provide funding to the HCT (which in the case of the B/DC’s funding is 

to be applied solely towards the [insert name of museum]  (Museum) and to monitor 

and review the application of their funding by the HCT in accordance with terms set 

out in the Agreement. 

Agreement to the formation of a partnership funding committee (PFC) which will be a 

joint committee. 

In furtherance of this purpose the LAs propose to co-opt the HCT as a non-voting 

member of the PFC as provided in the Agreement. 

4. Term 

Agreement to be in force for a period of [      ] subject to earlier termination in the 

following events: 

4.1 Upon either party giving [    ] months written notice to the other party (parties) 

and to the PFC; or 

4.2 by notice from one party to the other if the other party is in default and fails to 

remedy the default (if capable of remedy within [60 days]; or 

Agenda Item 6

37



4.3 if the Museum ceases to operate for any reason; 

5. Partnership Funding Committee 

 Purpose of committee: 

5.1  to consider and make recommendations through the relevant governance 

channel of the LAs funding contributions from the B/D Council and HCC (which in the 

case of HCC will be part of the overall funding HCC is to provide to the HCT under 

the Management and Funding Agreement); 

5.2 to monitor and review the application of the LAs’ funding by the HCT;  

5.3 to make recommendations through the  relevant governance channels of the 

LAs in respect of the outcomes HCT shall incorporate into its Business Plan; 

5.4  composition of the committee including representative of the Trust as a co-

opted non voting member; and  

5.5 procedural matters in relation to the PFC, including frequency of meetings. 

6. Funding 

 Funding to be provided by the LAs.  In respect of the B/D Councils this will be on 

conditional basis i.e. subject to availability of future budgets within B/D Council and in 

respect of HCC funding will be in accordance with the terms of the Management and 

Funding Agreement. 

 Details regarding when B/D Council will make payments to HCC or direct to HCT. 

7. Monitoring and review 

 LAs proposals in relation to how they will monitor and review the  HCT’s application 

of the LAs’ funding.  

 LAs agreed approach to making recommendations to HCT in respect of future 

outcomes to be included in HCT’s Business Plan. 

 Intentions in relation to meetings with HCT.   

8. Process in event of Default 

 Where either party is in default other party can serve notice requesting default be 

remedied.  Failure to remedy default will enable non defaulting party to terminate 

Agreement. 

9. Dispute provisions 

 In the event of a dispute in relation to the Agreement parties to endeavour to resolve 

dispute through officers of the authorities with escalation to Chief Executives..  

 

 

38


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report
	5 Draft 2015/16 Venue Plan
	6 Partnership Committee Agreement - Heads of Terms

